
The Board may add and take action on other items not listed on this agenda and order of action is subject to change 

The hearing facility is “barrier free” and accessible by those with physical disabilities.  Aids will be provided upon request for those 

with language/speaking or hearing impediments, but requests need to be received at least five (5) business days prior to this hearing.  
Such requests may be filed in person at the Commissioners’ Office at the address noted above or at 360/875-9337.

Pacific County is an Equal Opportunity Employer and Provider 

BEFORE THE LOCAL BOARD OF HEALTH 

PACIFIC COUNTY, WASHINGTON 

1216 W. Robert Bush Drive 

South Bend, Washington 

Tuesday, August 12, 2014 

9:00AM or shortly thereafter as possible 

AGENDA 

 
 

MEETINGS/WORKSHOPS 

Call to Order 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE FOR PACIFIC COUNTY BOARD OF HEALTH & 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS MEETINGS 

Public Comment (limited to three minutes per person) 

CONSENT AGENDA (A-B) 

A) Approve regular meeting minutes of July 22, 2014

CLOSE MEETING 

All matters listed within the Consent Agenda have been distributed to each County Commissioner 

for review and are considered routine.  Consent Agenda items will be approved by one motion of 

the Board of County Commissioners with no separate discussion.  If separate discussion is desired 

on a certain item, that item may be removed from the Consent Agenda at the request of a 

Commissioner, for action later. 



PACIFIC COUNTY, WASHINGTON  

LOCAL BOARD OF HEALTH 

JOURNAL #32 

July 22, 2014 Page 26 

PROCEEDINGS 

9:00 AM 1216 W. Robert Bush Drive 

Tuesday, July 22, 2014 South Bend, Washington 

CALL TO ORDER – 9:01am 

Steve Rogers, Chair 

Frank Wolfe, Commissioner 

Lisa Ayers, Commissioner 

Marie Guernsey, Clerk of the Board 

Kathy Spoor, County Administrative Officer 

Paul Plakinger, Management & Fiscal Analyst 

Mike Collins, Public Works Director/County Engineer 

Mary Goelz, Health & Human Services Director 

GENERAL PUBLIC IN ATTENDANCE 

Mike Williams-Chinook Observer (recorded meeting) 

Pat Myers-Willapa Harbor Herald (recorded meeting) 

Gerry Amacher 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE FOR PACIFIC COUNTY BOARD OF HEALTH & 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS MEETINGS 

PUBLIC COMMENT – None 

CONSENT AGENDA (A-B) 

It was moved by Wolfe, seconded by Ayers and carried by a vote of 3-0 

Regular meeting minutes of July 8, 2014 

Rainbow Valley Landfill Claims Vouchers 

PUD #2 - $63.46 

Royal Heights Transfer Station Inc. - $1,229.76 

MEETING CLOSED – 9:02AM 

PACIFIC COUNTY 

LOCAL BOARD OF HEATLH 

_______________________________ 

Steve Rogers, Chairman 

_______________________________ 

ATTEST: Frank Wolfe, Commissioner 

__________________________ _______________________________ 

Marie Guernsey Lisa Ayers, Commissioner 

Clerk of the Board 
(Please refer to recording of the meeting for a more detailed discussion) 

A



 

The Board may add and take action on other items not listed on this agenda and order of action is subject to change. 
 

The hearing facility is “barrier free” and accessible by those with physical disabilities.  Aids will be provided upon request for those with 
language/speaking or hearing impediments, but requests need to be received at least five (5) business days prior to this hearing.  Such 

requests may be filed in person at the Commissioners’ Office at the address noted above or at 360/875-9337. 

 
Pacific County is an Equal Opportunity Employer and Provider 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS  

PACIFIC COUNTY, WASHINGTON 

1216 W. Robert Bush Drive 

South Bend, Washington 
 

Tuesday, August 12, 2014 

9:00AM or shortly thereafter 
The Board of County Commissioners meeting will be called  

to order following the business of the Local Board of Health 
 

AGENDA 

 
 

MEETINGS/WORKSHOPS 

1:00 PM Workshop re: management insurance pool 
 
 

PUBLIC HEARINGS (held in the Commissioners Meeting Room unless otherwise noted) 

10:00 AM Public Hearing- Adoption of  SEPA Determination of mitigated non-

significance and Ordinance 174 Use of all-terrain vehicles on County 

Roads 

 

WORKSHOPS/MEETINGS (held in the Commissioners Conference Room unless otherwise noted) 

12:00 PM Elected Officials Meeting 
Election Room at the Courthouse 

6:00 PM Community Forum 
Ilwaco Community Center 

 

 

Call to Order 
 

Public Comment (limited to three minutes per person) 
 

CONSENT AGENDA (Items 1-6) 
 

Department of Public Works 
1) Approve revised Exhibit A to the Communications Facility Use 

Agreement/KO site with Sinclair Television 

 

Community Development 
2) Approve Amendment #5 for the Memorandum of Understanding between 

Pacific County, City of South Bend, City of Raymond and Royal Heights 

Transfer Station 
 

Prosecutor’s Office 
3) Approve disposal of inventory items 
 

 

 

 

 

All matters listed within the Consent Agenda have been distributed to each County Commissioner 

for review and are considered routine.  Consent Agenda items will be approved by one motion of 

the Board of County Commissioners with no separate discussion.  If separate discussion is desired 

on a certain item, that item may be removed from the Consent Agenda at the request of a 

Commissioner, for action later. 
 



 

The Board may add and take action on other items not listed on this agenda and order of action is subject to change. 
 

The hearing facility is “barrier free” and accessible by those with physical disabilities.  Aids will be provided upon request for those with 
language/speaking or hearing impediments, but requests need to be received at least five (5) business days prior to this hearing.  Such 

requests may be filed in person at the Commissioners’ Office at the address noted above or at 360/875-9337. 

 
Pacific County is an Equal Opportunity Employer and Provider 

August 12, 2014 

Page 2 

 

 

General Business 

4) Approve Vendor Claims: 

Warrants Numbered 123289 thru 123375 - $244,115.17 

Warrants Numbered 123196 thru 123288 - $153,933.68 

Warrants Numbered 123133 thru 123195 - $190,154.35 

5) Approve payroll for July 2014; total number of employees: 217;  

total Payroll Amount: $826,809.65 

6) Approve regular meeting minutes of July 22, 2014 and continued meeting of 

July 23, 2014 
 

ITEMS REGARDING DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 

7) Consider approval of a Communications Facility Lease Agreement with 

CRESCOMM WIFI, LLC for the Megler and Long Beach Sites 

8)  Consider approval of request to hire Kelly Borden to fill vacant Shop 
Supervisor position 

 

ITEMS REGARDING COUNTY FAIR 

9) Consider approval of 2014 Entertainment Contracts with Anitize, Jesse Lee 

Falls Band, Naselle Marimba Band, North Country Bluegrass Band and 

Sansom Sound Solutions; authorize Fair Manager to sign  

10) Consider approval of Judge’s Agreement for the Pacific County Fair 2014 

with Ellen Hinderlie as Swine and Beef Judge, Tabatha Bielmier as Horse 

Judge; authorize Fair Manager to sign  

 

ITEMS REGARDING HEALTH & HUMAN SERVICES DEPARTMENT 

11) Consider approval of Agreement for Challenge Course Training with 

Synergo, LLC 

12) Consider approval of School Nurse Services Contract with the Naselle Grays 

River and the South Bend School Districts 
 

ITEMS REGARDING SHERIFF’S OFFICE 

13) Consider approval of upgrade to eight Dell laptops and the purchase of two 

new Dell laptops 

 

ITEMS REGARDING JUVENILE COURT SERVICES 

14) Consider approval of request for Family Medical Leave; authorize Leave 

Credit Transfers 

 

ITEMS REGARDING GENERAL BUSINESS 

15) Acknowledgement of Special Event Use Agreement and authorize Chair to 

sign 

16) Consider adoption of Resolution 2014-_____ amending the Credit Card 

Policy procedures 

17) Consider to rescind the motion of June 24, 2014 awarding the Port of 

Peninsula $25,000 from Fund 126 and approve recommendations from 

PCOG in the amount of $10,000 



 

The Board may add and take action on other items not listed on this agenda and order of action is subject to change. 
 

The hearing facility is “barrier free” and accessible by those with physical disabilities.  Aids will be provided upon request for those with 
language/speaking or hearing impediments, but requests need to be received at least five (5) business days prior to this hearing.  Such 

requests may be filed in person at the Commissioners’ Office at the address noted above or at 360/875-9337. 

 
Pacific County is an Equal Opportunity Employer and Provider 

 

August 12, 2014 

Page 3 

 

 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

18) To discuss anticipated litigation, pending litigation or any matter suitable for  

 Executive Session under RCW 42.30.11 

 

PUBLIC HEARING – 10:00am 

19) Consider adoption of the SEPA Determination of mitigated non-significance  

 and Ordinance No. 174 establishing regulations for, and allowing of,  

 Wheeled All-Terrain Vehicles and Off-Road Vehicles on certain county  

 roadways 



8/12/2014

1





2







3















4







5



PACIFIC COUNTY, WASHINGTON 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

JOURNAL #50 

July 22, 2014 Page 81 

PROCEEDINGS 

9:00 AM 1216 W Robert Bush Drive 

Tuesday, July 22, 2014 South Bend, Washington 

CALLED TO ORDER – 9:00AM 

Steve Rogers, Chair 

Frank Wolfe, Commissioner 

Lisa Ayers, Commissioner 

Marie Guernsey, Clerk of the Board 

Kathy Spoor, County Administrative Officer 

Paul Plakinger, Management & Fiscal Analyst 

Mike Collins, Public Works Director/County Engineer 

Mary Goelz, Health & Human Services Director 

GENERAL PUBLIC IN ATTENDANCE 

Mike Williams-Chinook Observer (recorded meeting) 

Pat Myers-Willapa Harbor Herald (recorded meeting) 

Gerry Amacher 

PUBLIC COMMENT 

Gerry Amacher asked the Board when the new atv ordinance would be in place.  

Kathy Spoor stated the draft ordinance has been prepared and sent to the 

Prosecutor and the Sheriff for their review.  A public hearing will be scheduled  

and published in the local paper and posted on the website. 

CONSENT AGENDA (Items 1-3) 

It was moved by Wolfe, seconded by Ayers and carried by a vote of 3-0 

Subject to adequate budget appropriations and in accordance with all applicable 

county policies 

Sheriff’s Office/Emergency Management 

Notice received pertaining to the appointment of Courtney Hagain as the  

2014-2015 program year AmeriCorps member, effective September 1, 2014 

General Business 

Approve Vendor Claims: 

Warrants Numbered 123005 thru 123132 - $385,983.49 

Approve regular meeting minutes of July 8, 2014 and continued meeting of 

July 14, 2014 

6



PACIFIC COUNTY, WASHINGTON 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

JOURNAL #50 

July 22, 2014 Page 82 

YEARS OF SERVICE 

5 Years:  

Jared Capps (Dispatch) 

10 Years:  
Shelley Carter (Health) 

15 Years:  
Scott Jacot (Juvenile) 

20 Years:  
Dawn Lorton (Clerk) 

Greg Chalker (DPW) 

ITEMS REGARDING DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 

It was moved by Ayers, seconded by Wolfe and carried by a vote of 3-0 

Approve temporary Stormwater System Easement from Mark & Barbara  

Brotherton in conjunction with the Morrison Road Culvert Replacement and 

Drainage Cleanout Project 

Approve temporary hire of Phebe Porter, not to exceed 43 hours per 

month, at a rate of $30/hour, effective July 21, 2014 through 

September15, 2014, subject to adequate budget appropriations and if 

future assistance is needed it will be requested to the Board 

ITEMS REGARDING COUNTY FAIR 

It was moved by Ayers, seconded by Wolfe and carried by a vote of 3-0 

Approve Special Use Event Agreements for use of the horse arena during 

open Rides and authorize Chair to sign 

ITEMS REGARDING HEALTH & HUMAN SERVICES DEPARTMENT 

It was moved by Ayers, seconded by Wolfe and carried by a vote of 3-0 

Approve Contract for School Nurse Services with Willapa Valley School 

District for the 2014-15 school year 

Approve Sustaining Membership Agreement with CHOICE Regional Health 

Network and authorize Chair to sign 

Approve Professional Services Contract with McDonald Consulting for 

completion of the comprehensive Community Health Assessment and 

Community Health Improvement Plan and authorize Chair to sign 



PACIFIC COUNTY, WASHINGTON 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

JOURNAL #50 

July 22, 2014 Page 83 

ITEMS REGARDING JUVENILE COURT SERVICES 

It was moved by Wolfe, seconded by Ayers and carried by a vote of 3-0 

Approve Interagency Agreement IAA15030 with State of WA Administrative 

Office of the Courts and authorize Administrator to sign 

ITEMS REGARDING SUPERIOR COURT 

It was moved by Wolfe, seconded by Ayers and carried by a vote of 3-0 

Approve Interagency Agreement IAA15 with State of WA Office of Civil 

Legal Aid for reimbursement of allowable expenses associated with  

appointed attorneys for children in dependency proceedings 

ITEMS REGARDING GENERAL BUSINESS 

It was moved by Wolfe, seconded by Ayers and carried by a vote of 3-0 

Approve the Landowner Acknowledgement Form pertaining to the Stringer 

Creek Culvert project and authorize County Engineer to sign 

Adopt Resolution 2014-033 supporting the WA State Association of Counties 

(WSAC) fiscal sustainability initiative 

Approve "draft" Emergency Response Plan 

Approve Special Event Application submitted by Chuck Stuart for use of the 

Chinook County Park on July 30, 2014 and authorize Chair to sign 

Approve amendment to Attachment C of Resolution 2010-035 Special Event 

Application Process 

EXECUTIVE SESSION-None 

CONTINUED MEETING 

Meeting continued to Wednesday, July 23
rd

 at 9am, or as soon thereafter as

possible, for the purpose of conducting a public hearing to consider an Assembly 

Permit 

(Please refer to recording of the meeting for a more detailed discussion) 



PACIFIC COUNTY, WASHINGTON 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

JOURNAL #50 

July 23, 2014 Page 84 

PROCEEDINGS 

9:00 AM 1216 W Robert Bush Drive 

Wednesday, July 23, 2014 South Bend, Washington 

CALLED TO ORDER – 9:01AM 

Steve Rogers, Chair 

Frank Wolfe, Commissioner 

Marie Guernsey, Clerk of the Board 

ABSENT: 

Lisa Ayers, Commissioner (WA Counties Risk Pool Conference) 

GENERAL PUBLIC IN ATTENDANCE 

Pat Myers-Willapa Harbor Herald (arrived after the close of the hearing) 

PUBLIC HEARING 

Chairman Rogers opened the public hearing to consider the Assembly Permit  

submitted by Mike Swanson on behalf of the Finnish-American Folk Festival.  

The applicant was not in attendance. 

Chairman Rogers closed the public hearing. 

It was moved by Wolfe, seconded by Rogers, and carried by a vote of 2-0 

Approve the Assembly Permit Application as submitted by Mike Swanson  

for the Finnish-American Folk Festival to be held July 25-27, 2014 at the  

Naselle High School, subject to any requirements and/or conditions placed by 

the County Sheriff or the Department of Community Development 

MEETING CLOSED – 9:02AM 

PACIFIC COUNTY 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

_______________________________ 

Steve Rogers, Chairman 

_______________________________ 

ATTEST: Frank Wolfe, Commissioner 

__________________________ _______________________________ 

Marie Guernsey Lisa Ayers, Commissioner 

Clerk of the Board 

 (Please refer to recording of the meeting for a more detailed discussion) 

Absent 



7























8



9













10



11









12









12









13



14



15



16































17

















RCW 42.30.110 
Executive sessions.

(1) Nothing contained in this chapter may be construed to prevent a governing body from 
holding an executive session during a regular or special meeting: 

(a) To consider matters affecting national security; 

(b) To consider the selection of a site or the acquisition of real estate by lease or purchase when 
public knowledge regarding such consideration would cause a likelihood of increased price; 

(c) To consider the minimum price at which real estate will be offered for sale or lease when 
public knowledge regarding such consideration would cause a likelihood of decreased price. 
However, final action selling or leasing public property shall be taken in a meeting open to the 
public; 

(d) To review negotiations on the performance of publicly bid contracts when public knowledge 
regarding such consideration would cause a likelihood of increased costs; 

(e) To consider, in the case of an export trading company, financial and commercial information 
supplied by private persons to the export trading company; 

(f) To receive and evaluate complaints or charges brought against a public officer or employee. 
However, upon the request of such officer or employee, a public hearing or a meeting open to 
the public shall be conducted upon such complaint or charge; 

(g) To evaluate the qualifications of an applicant for public employment or to review the 
performance of a public employee. However, subject to RCW 42.30.140(4), discussion by a 
governing body of salaries, wages, and other conditions of employment to be generally applied 
within the agency shall occur in a meeting open to the public, and when a governing body elects 
to take final action hiring, setting the salary of an individual employee or class of employees, or 
discharging or disciplining an employee, that action shall be taken in a meeting open to the 
public; 

(h) To evaluate the qualifications of a candidate for appointment to elective office. However, any 
interview of such candidate and final action appointing a candidate to elective office shall be in a 
meeting open to the public; 

(i) To discuss with legal counsel representing the agency matters relating to agency 
enforcement actions, or to discuss with legal counsel representing the agency litigation or 
potential litigation to which the agency, the governing body, or a member acting in an official 
capacity is, or is likely to become, a party, when public knowledge regarding the discussion is 
likely to result in an adverse legal or financial consequence to the agency. 

This subsection (1)(i) does not permit a governing body to hold an executive session solely 
because an attorney representing the agency is present. For purposes of this subsection (1)(i), 
"potential litigation" means matters protected by RPC 1.6 or RCW 5.60.060(2)(a) concerning: 

(i) Litigation that has been specifically threatened to which the agency, the governing body, or a 
member acting in an official capacity is, or is likely to become, a party; 

18

http://apps.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=42.30.140
http://apps.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=5.60.060


(ii) Litigation that the agency reasonably believes may be commenced by or against the agency, 
the governing body, or a member acting in an official capacity; or 

(iii) Litigation or legal risks of a proposed action or current practice that the agency has identified 
when public discussion of the litigation or legal risks is likely to result in an adverse legal or 
financial consequence to the agency; 

(j) To consider, in the case of the state library commission or its advisory bodies, western library 
network prices, products, equipment, and services, when such discussion would be likely to 
adversely affect the network's ability to conduct business in a competitive economic climate. 
However, final action on these matters shall be taken in a meeting open to the public; 

(k) To consider, in the case of the state investment board, financial and commercial information 
when the information relates to the investment of public trust or retirement funds and when 
public knowledge regarding the discussion would result in loss to such funds or in private loss to 
the providers of this information; 

(l) To consider proprietary or confidential nonpublished information related to the development, 
acquisition, or implementation of state purchased health care services as provided in RCW 
41.05.026; 

(m) To consider in the case of the life sciences discovery fund authority, the substance of grant 
applications and grant awards when public knowledge regarding the discussion would 
reasonably be expected to result in private loss to the providers of this information; 

(n) To consider in the case of a health sciences and services authority, the substance of grant 
applications and grant awards when public knowledge regarding the discussion would 
reasonably be expected to result in private loss to the providers of this information; 

(o) To consider in the case of innovate Washington, the substance of grant or loan applications 
and grant or loan awards if public knowledge regarding the discussion would reasonably be 
expected to result in private loss to the providers of this information. 

(2) Before convening in executive session, the presiding officer of a governing body shall 
publicly announce the purpose for excluding the public from the meeting place, and the time 
when the executive session will be concluded. The executive session may be extended to a 
stated later time by announcement of the presiding officer. 

http://apps.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=41.05.026


19




